
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

SUB COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Councillor Mike Wharton (Chairman) Labour 

Councillor Phil Harris Labour 

Councillor Steff Nelson Labour 

 
 
 

Please contact Gill Ferguson on  0151 471 7395 or e-mail 
gill.ferguson@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
The next meeting of the Sub Committee is on Thursday, 13 December 
2007 
 

Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
Thursday, 29 November 2007 at 10.00 
a.m. 
Marketing Suite, Municipal Building 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that 
item is reached and (subject to certain exceptions in the Code 
of Conduct for Members) to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. CORPORATE SERVICES PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) DISCRETIONARY NON-DOMESTIC RATE RELIEF   
 

1 - 4 

4. PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION, REGENERATION AND 
RENEWAL PORTFOLIO 

 

 

 (A) HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT SCHEME A56/A558 
DARESBURY EXPRESSWAY JUNCTION   

 

5 - 9 

PART II 
  

 

In this case the Sub Committee has a discretion to exclude the 
press and public, but in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted it is RECOMMENDED that under Section 100(A)(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, having been satisfied that in all 
the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 

5. ENVIRONMENT, LEISURE AND SPORT PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) WASTE MANAGEMENT RELATED CONTRACTS   
 

10 - 15 

6. COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO 
 

 



 (A) PROCUREMENT OF CONSTRUCTION OF 
TRAVELLERS TRANSIT SITE   

 

16 - 19 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



 
REPORT TO: Executive Board Sub-Committee 
 
DATE: 29th November 2007 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Discretionary Non-Domestic Rate Relief 
 
WARD(S): Borough-wide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for members to consider an application for 

Discretionary Non-Domestic Rate Relief, under the provisions of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: That  
 

(1) Under the provisions of Section 47, Local Government 
Finance Act 1988, Discretionary Rate Relief be granted to 
the following organisations at the percentage indicated, for 
the period from 1st April 2007 or the commencement of 
liability, whichever is the later, to 31st March 2009: 

  
Kingsway Bike Project 100% 

  
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Under the provisions of Section 47 of the Local Government Finance 

Act 1988, the Authority is allowed to grant Discretionary Rate Relief to 
organisations that are either a charity or a non-profit making 
organisation. This relief may also be awarded to Community Amateur 
Sports Clubs. A summary of the applications follows and a list of the 
associated figures are attached in Appendix 1. 

  
Kingsway Bike Project 

 Adjacent 105 Kingsway, Widnes 
 
 Kingsway Bike Project is a ‘not for profit’ organisation and a sister 

group of the Kingsway Tenants and Residents Association. The project 
provides free training and advice on cycles for the local community and 
aims to increase the number of bicycles that people have access to, 
which should contribute to improving the health of participants. 

 
           The property is a purpose built workshop, which provides maintenance, 

education and storage facilities and is leased from Halton Housing 
Trust, at a peppercorn rent of £1 per year. The group currently has 72 

Agenda Item 3aPage 1



members, ranging from 2 years to 79 years of age and is hoping to 
have 100 members by the end of the year. 

        
 As the project is not a registered charity, it does not receive any 

Mandatory Rate Relief and the application is for 100% Discretionary 
Rate Relief. Other sporting organisations have benefited from the award 
of this relief, at the maximum rate possible. 

 
Cost to Taxpayer  (25%) 2007/08 £69.15  

  
 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Members are required by the regulations to consider each application 

on its own merit.  Any recommendations provided are given for 
guidance only and are consistent with previous decisions and council 
policy. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 75% of any Discretionary Rate Relief granted to organisations 

receiving Mandatory Rate Relief must be met by the Council Taxpayer, 
whilst 25% must be met if Mandatory Rate Relief has not been 
awarded.  Appendix 1 identifies the cost to the Council Taxpayer for 
each new application.  All the applicants provide support and/or 
education to the community, which is consistent with the Council's 
Corporate Plan. 

 
6.0      IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
     
6.1    Children and Young People in Halton 
              
           Kingsway Bike Project provides facilities for children and young people 
                                      
6.2    Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
             
           The group offers opportunities for learning and enhancing skills. 
 

6.3    A Healthy Halton 
       

The project increases the number of cycles available to the   
community, which should assist in improving the health of residents.         

 

6.4    A Safer Halton 
    

           Teaching young people cycling proficiency should contribute to a safer   
           Halton.        
 
 
6.5    Halton’s Urban Renewal 

Page 2



 
           None applicable. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

7.1 There are no key risks associated with the proposed action. 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 Kingway Bike Project offers membership to all sections of the 
community.  

 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D 
 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer 
    
 Application form and 

supporting evidence 
Catalyst House, 
Widnes 

Phil Murphy, 
Business Rates 
Manager 

Page 3



  

APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 

Ratepayer Address Annual 
Rates 

2007/2008 
£ 

Actual 
Rates 
Liability 
2007/2008 

£ 

Mandatory 
Rate Relief 
Awarded 

Actual 
Rates 
Payable 
2007/2008 

£ 

Discretionary 
Rate Relief 
Claimed 

Annual 
Cost of 
Relief 
to HBC 

2007/2008 
£ 

Actual Cost 
of Relief to 

HBC  
2007/2008 

£ 

 
Kingway Bike 
Project 
 

 
Adjacent 105 Kingsway, 
Widnes 

 
355.20 

 
276.59 

 
Nil 

 
276.59 

 
100% 

 
88.80 

 
69.15 

 P
a
g
e
 4



REPORT TO:  Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
DATE: 29 November 2007 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Director Of Environment 
 
SUBJECT:    Highway Improvement Scheme 

A56/A558 Daresbury Expressway Junction 
 
WARDS: Daresbury 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To seek approval for Capital Funding for the scheme. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That 
 

(1)  the Council be recommended to include the scheme in the 
capital programme at a total cost of £3.478m; and 

 
(2)  the funding for the scheme, and the fact that it will be 

undertaken within one contract be noted. 
  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The rapid development of the eastern Runcorn area is continuing to 

generate significant traffic growth, resulting in congestion at the 
junction of the A558 Daresbury Expressway and A56 Chester Road.  
Halton’s Local Transport Plan describes a highway improvement 
scheme that is designed to increase junction capacity through the 
introduction of traffic signal control and widening the Expressway, to 
dual carriageway standard, between this junction and the Daresbury 
Science Park roundabout.  These measures are designed to 
accommodate the increase in traffic growth due to committed 
developments identified in the Unitary Development Plan and in 
particular, to improve access to the Daresbury Science and Innovation 
Centre in support of continuing business interest.  The estimated cost 
of the scheme is £3.478m including contract supervision and 
administration. 

 
3.2 When permission was granted for the Daresbury Science and 

Innovation Centre, it was subject to a Section 106 agreement relating 
to off site highway improvements which committed the NWDA to 
providing a new roundabout to an agreed specification on the 
Daresbury Expressway and a link road from there to Keckwick Lane.  
Both these elements have been provided.  The S106 agreement also 
provided for the Council to improve the A56 junction with the Daresbury 
Expressway and to dual the road between there and the new 
roundabout provided by the NWDA. 

 

Agenda Item 4aPage 5



3.3 The scheme now to be implemented to satisfy the terms of the S106 
agreement comprises:- replacement of the roundabout at A56 / 
Daresbury Expressway junction with traffic signals; the dualling of the 
carriageway between the A56 and the new roundabout on the 
Daresbury Expressway; and traffic movement restrictions on Keckwick 
Lane at the junction with A56. 

 
3.4 Funding for the scheme has been secured from the following sources: 

• Local transport Plan     £650,000 

• ERDF Objective 2    £658,500 

• NWDA Section 106 Contributions  £185,000 
(Daresbury Innovation Centre)   

• English Partnerships (EP) contributions  £250,000 
Total £1,743,500 

 
Therefore balance of funding needed to deliver the full scheme is 
£1,734,500. 

 
The ERDF contribution is dependant upon works being completed by 
June 2008 in order that final payment claims can be processed under 
ERDF regulations, and this will allow a first phase of the scheme, the 
conversion of the junction to traffic signal control, to proceed.   

 
3.5 Further funding from English Partnerships has been secured under a 

Section 106 planning agreement, tied into the future development of 
housing within the Sandymoor developments.  The agreement contains 
a schedule of infrastructure and transport related works in the 
Sandymoor area together with estimated costs including the proposed 
highway improvements totalling £4.5m at 2005 prices. However, the 
payment of contributions is   dependant upon housing plot completion 
being in line with an anticipated four to five year programme and the 
initial contribution may not be available until 2008/09.  Development 
has already commenced and EP have recently indicated a willingness 
to release funding more quickly, upon completion of land sales to 
developers.  

 
3.6 In order to meet the timetable for the construction of Phase 1 works, 

tenders have been invited on the basis of a phased approach, delaying 
the award of Phase 2 dualling scheme, until funding is confirmed in 
place.  However, there are distinct advantages to awarding a contract 
for the full scheme initially: 

 

• Operationally: Construction of the junction layout can be better planned 
and programmed to ease the transition between phases thereby 
reducing abortive work and future disruption to traffic using the 
junction. 

• Contractually: A simpler contract agreement with clearer programming 
and lower risk of compensation event payments (claims) can be 
achieved.  

Page 6



• Financially: Greater certainty of contract price, without need to re-
negotiate Phase 2 rates if the commencement date is delayed beyond 
2008.  There are also economies to be gained in minimising abortive or 
transitional works (described above) and reduced preliminary costs for 
site establishments etc. 

 
It should be noted, however, that even within a single contract, the work 
itself will still need to be phased, as it is necessary to relocate an existing 
badger sett that is close to a section of the proposed dual carriageway.  
Badgers are a protected species and their relocation can only proceed 
during certain times of year. 

 
3.7 It is recommended that £1.735m be made available from the Council’s 

capital programme in 2008/09 to enable implementation of the full 
scheme, until funding from the Section 106 agreement with English 
Partnerships is available.  The Council would be reimbursed from 
contributions paid under the agreement.   

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no policy implications relating to the scheme implementation 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Resource Implications  

Awarding a contract for the whole of the works will reduce the amount 
of staff time required for drawing up agreements and in contract 
administration. 

 
5.2 Best value implications 
 

Letting a contract for the full scheme in accordance with BV principles 
will permit efficient use of the resources available to deliver the 
improvement scheme in the most effective manner for residents, 
businesses and the travelling public. 
 

5.3 Legal Implications 
 

There are no legal implications 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

 No implications 
 

6.2  Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
These highway improvements will be undertaken on a busy traffic route 
serving the commercial and industrial developments at Daresbury SIC, 
Daresbury Park, Manor Park and Astmoor.  Implementing the scheme 

Page 7



within a single contract will enable completion earlier than under a 
phased approach and therefore deliver improved access to these 
important employment centres sooner and within a shorter period of 
traffic disruption.   

 

6.2 A Healthy Halton 
 

  No implications 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

The scheme addresses road traffic accident problems related to the 
layout of the A56 / A558 roundabout junction.  Improving the junction 
capacity will also reduce congestion and delays.  Improved traffic flow 
along this route should therefore reduce the incidence of ‘rat-running’, 
where drivers migrate onto other less suitable routes through 
residential areas of Sandymoor.  Early delivery of the full scheme will 
therefore deliver the increased capacity sooner, negating the need to 
use alternative routes and will facilitate the introduction of safety 
improvements on adjacent local roads in accordance with the safer 
roads and integrated transport strategies. 

 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 

The scheme provides improved transport access and connectivity to 
Daresbury SIC and other key employment sites in east Runcorn and 
contributes to meeting key urban renewal objectives in terms of 
supporting investment and economic growth.   

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 

7.1 Risks associated with funding the scheme from Halton’s capital 
programme: 

 
The payment of S106 planning agreement contributions from English 
Partnerships fail to materialise leaving the Council exposed to meeting 
the full additional cost of the scheme: 

• English Partnerships fail to find purchasers for the development land 

• Developers fail to secure planning permission for housing 
 
These scenarios are unlikely.  The agreement has already been invoked 
following the development of one of the ‘First Sites’, the Sandymoor 28 
housing development.   The other sites, Sandymoor 12 / 14 / 15 & 16 are 
identified for housing development in the UDP.  English Partnerships are 
currently undertaking a re-appraisal of specific areas allocated for 
housing and recreation within the sites, although this is intended to 
address flood risk issues and should not result in reduction in plot 
numbers.  Developer interest in Sandymoor is still strong and likely to 
remain so. 

 

Page 8



The payment of S106 planning agreement contributions are delayed 
leaving the Council exposed to interest payments for a longer period: 

• EP delay in bringing sites forward for sale for development 

• Slow developer interest in sites brought forward for development 

• Slow purchase of housing plots from developers 
 
Although the marketing of development land has been delayed for 
reasons stated above, these issues should be resolved soon.  A joint 
steering group has been set up comprising representatives of EP and 
the Council. Recent discussions have focused on the payment of 
contributions at completion of land sale to developers, delays in plot 
sales would therefore not affect contributions to the Council.   
 

 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

There are no equality and diversity issues. 
 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Document 
 
Section 106 Agreement 
between English 
Partnerships and Halton 
Borough Council 
 
A56 / A558 Daresbury 
Expressway Dualling 
and Junction 
Improvement. 
Scheme Drawings 

Place of Inspection 
 
Planning Division 
Environment Directorate 
Rutland House, 
Runcorn 
 
Highways Management 
Division 
Environment Directorate 
Rutland House, 
Runcorn 

Contact Officer 
 
L. Beard 
 
 
 
 
D. Cunliffe 
 

Page 9



Agenda Item 5aPage 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 6aPage 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3a Discretionary Non-Domestic Rate Relief
	4a Highway Improvement Scheme A56/A558 Daresbury Expressway Junction
	5a Waste Management Related Contracts
	6a Procurement of construction of Travellers Transit Site

